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APPEARANCE 

Waddill's StoreAis a three-bay three-story brick storefront which exhibits 
the Greek Revival style prevalent in antebellum North Carolina commercial 
architecture. It is distinguished by a gable front, which is reminiscent of 
Greek temple forms, and an unusual dentil cornice. The store was built during a 
period of commercial prosperity for Fayetteville, an inland port and trades 
center, and represents the typical general mer~handising operation of the 
nineteenth century. 

Waddill's .Store was erected as a free standing brick storefront with a 
three-bay front, central front entrance, and a three-tiered front porch. It 
retains its original construction with modifications over the years. The 
three-tiered porch was removed between 1910 and 1914 and replaced in more recent 
years with a one-story metal canopy. The canopy shields a modernized storefront 
with a picture window and off-center front entrance. Original window pIa c emen t 
remains unaltered throughout the second and third stories, although the openings 
are infilled with brick. The brick face of the building up to the gable peak 1S 

stucco-covered .. 

Recent construction has filled in the vacant spaces surrounding Waddill's 
Store, and it now shares party walls with commercial structures of various kinds. 
Therefore, the only facade visible other than the front is the rear, which is 
laid in random bond and has brick string courses delineating the stories. 
Projecting from the rear face is a one-story cement block extension. 

Th e fir s t floor interior of the former Waddi 11 's S tore is one large room 
which serves as a modern sales floor. The second story is accessible by a 
narrow 'straight staircase. On this level, the crumbling original chimney flue, 
wide floor boards, and plastered walls are visible. Four rooms and a wide hall 
are created by walls and partitions dating to several periods; an early one 
spanning the width of the building is constructed of narrow wooden strips with 
plaster infill and another of later vintage bears narrow beaded board sheathing. 
The third floor is no longer accessible from this level since the staircase has 
been closed off. 
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One of only two antebellum commercial remnants on Hay Street, Waddill's 
Store was built 'C. 1850 in the 'prevalent Greek Revival style. The three- story 
three-bay brick storefront is distinguished by 'an uncommon gable front.,with,a 
dentil corRice. ;-The ori~inal own€r 'and 'builder 'was John Waddill, Jr. who,' with 
his brother " Thomas ,oper'ated a general merchandise store o~ the premise~. 
Their commercial :and general retail intetests were representati've of t}1e kind 
rwhic,h flourished in antebel'lum Fayetteville, a'n inland port and trades 'center. 
The subsequent,history of the store is characterized by various uses 'such as 
offices and dwelling space, the leasing ofa restaurant, ~nd cur,rently, ~ men's ~ 
specialty clothing shop, uses wh'ich parall:el' the trend toward increasing 
specialization of commercial and retail operations during the late nineteenth 
,and twentieth centuries. 

CRITERIA ASSESSMENT 

A. Waddill's Store is associated with the commercial prosperity of 
Fayetteville, which has characterized the eastern end of Hay Street from the 
late eighteenth century to the present. 

c. The brick storefront first occupied by the Waddills is a fine c. 1850 Greek 
Revival commercial structure which rises three stories and is distinguished 
from others nearby by an unusual gable front with a dentil cornice. It is 
one of only two antebellum storefronts still standing on Hay Street. 



HISTORICAL BACKGROUND 

Th of context to 
forma t ion of Cross c n y f h 

.Market Square became for merchants who ied their trade 
the and wagon roads which radiated in seve rId i e c t ion s 

blishments of 11 kinds ith gener 1 merchandise stores 
predominating, were opened Trading continued there throughout the time that 
the Waddills operated their store and continues to highlight the area. 

John Waddill, Jr. built the store which stands today. This occurred c. 1859t 
severa] yearSafter he obtained a vacant lot on the north sid e 0 f Hay S t r e e t • 1 
According to period advertisements which start appearing around 1850, John and 
his partner Thomas Waddill dealt in general merchandise--from dry goods to 
drugs--and traded in both retail and wholesale ("job n ) lots. They catered to 
customers who were engaged in local industrial and agricultural endeavors, for 
their 1855 advertisement states: "We ask the Planters and Turpentine men to 
examine our Kerseys, Negro Blankets, Hats, and Shoes," and, later, that they had 
turpentine axes for sale. 2 Their advertisements appear on the classified pages 
a long wi th those for more than ten other general stores and numerous "forwa r ding 
and general commission merchants." 

In 1858, William McKay and Thomas Fuller purchased the property and owned 
it for ten years. 3 During this time, the store became known as the 
"Presbyterian Building" and very likely housed the Presbyterian Job Office, a 
printing company active in the late 1850s. The company printed pamphlets, 
circulars, and even the insurance policies for the nearby Fayetteville Mutual 
Insurance Company.4 The building's owner, William McKay, was a staunch 
Presbyteria'n .. ~and one of the first deacons appointed in 1858 at Fayetteville's 
First Presbyterian Church. 5 He sold the "Presbyterian Building" to Murdock 
McRae in 1869 and he to Dr. Ervin Floyd in 1880. 6 

The changes in use of the former general store since 1880 parallel the 
trend toward increasing specialization of commercial and retail operations in 
the late nineteenth and twentieth centuries. Since Floyd's 1880 purchase, the 
store has been transferred among members of his and the Van Story families, and 
has been used for a variety of purposes from serving as office and dwelling 
space around 1900 to housing a restaurant called the "New York Cafe" in the 
1940s. 7 The building now houses a men's specialty clothing store called 
Bernard's.8 
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VERBAL BOUNDARY D'ESCRIPTION 

All of lot 7, Block F. ~p 78-2-3-4, Cross Creek Township, as outlined in red 
on map. See map section. 
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